HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
July 28, 2008
9:18 A M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 9:18:26 AM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Mary Nel son

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Harry Crawf ord
Representative Les Gara
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Bill Thomas Jr.

ALSO PRESENT

Representative John Coghill; Representative Bryce Edgenon
Representative Kyle Johansen; Randal | Ruar o, Speci al
Assistant, O fice of the CGovernor

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Johanna Bal es, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue; Cyde (Ed) Sniffen Jr., Assistant Attorney General,
Cvil Division, Departnment of Law

SUMVARY

HB 4004 An Act suspending the nmotor fuel tax; and
providing for an effective date.

HB 4004 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#HB4004
HOUSE BI LL NO. 4004

An Act suspending the notor fuel tax; and providing for
an effective date.

9:19: 15 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 07/28/08 9:18 A M



RANDALL RUARQO, SPECI AL ASSI STANT, OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR,
expl ained that the proposed |egislation would suspend the
notor fuel tax for one year, helping a broad range of
Al askans. He stated that this help would not create a new
bur eaucracy, and woul d benefit nearly every Al askan, as nost
consuner goods are shi pped by plane, boat, barge, or truck.
The tax suspension applies to the fuel necessary to ship
goods.

M. Ruaro explained that the fuel tax suspension benefits
three major industries: the fishing industry (comrercial and
charter,) the aviation industry, and the transportation
industry. He added that the bill is one of several efforts
to assist fishernmen at state and federal levels. The State
Division of Investnents is also offering |owinterest |oans
to fishernmen to install fuel-efficient engines. He felt the

bill would provide a significant benefit to coasta
comunities. He stated that airports would also benefit
from the suspension. Regionally, there are a nunber of
rural communities that can only be reached by air. He added
that the trucking industry and barge lines would also
benefit.

M. Ruaro acknow edged that the bill is not perfect, but

predicted that with the conpetitive nmarket noving to mass
transit, the tax suspension woul d be passed onto consuners.
He hoped that there could be additional |anguage allow ng
consunmers to benefit fromthe suspension.

9: 24: 24 AM

Represent ati ve Hawker pointed out the |ack of assurance that
the reduction would be passed on to the consuners. He
argued that the conpetitive market place would not pass it
on. He wanted assurance that the relief would be passed on
to the consuners.

M. Ruaro referenced a study from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MT), stating that in the year
2000, a six nmonth fuel tax suspension by Indiana and
Il'linois provided 60% - 80% savings for the consuners. He
recounted a conversation with one |arge Anchorage retailer
who believes that the savings will absolutely be passed on
to the consuners. He recomended working wth the
Department of Law to determ ne ways to pass on the suspended
t ax. He stated that there were a range of options, which
could include consuner protection and civil fines.

9:27: 09 AM

Represent ati ve Hawker countered that the state could see 20%
- 40% inefficiency or waste factor if the MT study was
correct. M. Ruaro acknow edged that the MT study did
indicate a potential waste.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 07/28/08 9:18 A M



Representative Hawker stated that the original bill was a
twel ve nonth suspension. He observed that CSHB 4004 (L&C)
only discusses 12 consecutive calendar nonths inmmedi ately
following the nonth of the effective date. He wanted to see
a definitive calendar end. M. Ruaro agreed that the
| anguage change in the House Labor and Commerce conmttee
substitute nmade sense, because it allows flexibility as to
when the tax suspension wll actually start. M. Ruaro
stated that the administration was generally confortable
with the H(L&C) | anguage.

9:29: 09 AM

Representative Hawker asked if the bill were effective
i mredi ately, was there enough tinme for vendors to
accommodat e the change. M. Ruaro did not know for sure. He
understood that vendors would have until the end of the
month to make the change. Representati ve Hawker worried
about the date. He infornmed that his experience as an
accountant working with fuel excise accounting, taught him
that “governnent had caused problens for fuel vendors wth
the unintended consequences of otherwise well neaning
actions.”

M. Ruaro offered to coordinate with the speaker on the
transmttal timng of the bill, if it passes, so that the
coordination is nost useful to the vendors. Representative
Hawker observed that coordination M. Ruaro spoke of would
pl ace the responsibility onto the | egislature.

9: 30: 48 AM

Representative Hawker asked why all notor fuel sales
invoices in the state were necessary.

JOHANNA BALES, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE testified via teleconference. She stated that the
reason for the required sales invoices deals with the tax
division's reporting requirenents for the Federal Hi ghway
Adm nistration. She inforned that she is required to report
t he amount of fuel used on the highway in order to maintain
the funds that the federal governnment provides to the state
of Alaska. As part of the nmotor fuel program there are
sales of nmotor fuel and there are clains for refunds. The
Departnment of Revenue would need to know who the gasoline
was sold to in order to determ ne how nuch fuel was actually
used on the highway. The sales invoices provide the ability
to make an estimate.

9:32:43 AM

Representati ve Hawker pointed out that, historically, the
vendor submts sales invoices only on “use conversion and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 07/28/08 9:18 A M



tax exenpt sales.” M. Bales responded that vendors place
all the information together in a report for the purpose of
claimng a refund. She continued that a claim for refund
requires all docunentation including all original invoices.
The invoices will now cone from the distributors, since
there won’t be a need to file a refund claimif there is no
not or fuel tax.

Representative Hawker clarified that the statute requires
every person in the fiscal year that precedes the suspension
to submt a nonthly report showing all sales or transfers of

gasoline, diesel, and aviation fuel. He thought that the
gathering of this information would be difficult for the
smal |l independent retailer. Ms. Bales responded that

retailers are not required to provide the information
because they are not qualified dealers; only at the
distributor level, are invoices necessary. She agreed that
it does appear onerous; however, the information would
satisfy the federal highway requirenent.

Representative Hawker wunderstood, but pointed out the
anbiguity of the term “qualified dealer” wthin statute.
Ms. Bales clarified that the provision states that the
person subject to AS 43.40.10(c) is only the qualified
deal er neaning that a retail establishment was not subject
to that statute. Representative Hawker felt that there nust
be a better way to acconplish the goal

9:37:47 AM

Co-Chair Chenault asked for clarification on who collects
the tax. M. Bales explained that the tax is collected by
the distributor fromthe retailer

Co-Chair Chenault expressed concerns about the |ega
ram fication of dropping the tax and the effect on federa
hi ghway funds. Ms. Bales inforned that the change would
have no effect on the federal highway funds, if the state
provi des the estimated anmount of fuel used on the highway.

Co- Chair Chenault asked if distributors and whol esalers are
required to provide the state informati on on fuel sales that
were not required in the past. M. Bales replied that yes,
they would have to attach their invoices to the returns,
whi ch woul d be a change for the distributors.

Co- Chair Chenault warned about the increased |abor costs to
whol esal ers and distri butors. Ms. Bal es acknow edged the
change for distributors, but stressed that clainmnts would
no |longer have the sanme reporting requirenent in order to
get the tax back fromthe state.

Co- Chair Chenaul t asked about pot enti al politica
ram fications, on the federal | evel , concerning the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 07/28/08 9:18 A M



vi ewpoi nt of Al aska's decision. M. Ruaro answered that
while the potential for judgnent exists, the |egislation
m ght al so be viewed as Al aska helping itself, as opposed to
seeking federal relief fromthe high fuel taxes.

9:43: 02 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked if other states were reducing the
amount of fuel tax collected. M. Ruaro affirned, thirteen
ot her states have suspended the notor fuel tax.

9:43: 58 AM

Vice-Chair Stoltze nentioned the proposed anendnment to
prohi bit |ocal governments from adding on to the fuel costs
during the tinme of the proposed fuel tax suspension. He
hoped to also add Ianguage for the hone heating fuel
| egi sl ati on.

M. Ruaro commented that the concept of state taxes set at a
certain rate versus a percent tax that grows as the price
grows was sonething that he had run across in his research

He agreed that the percent tax could have a |arger inpact.
Vice-Chair Stoltze thought it could be an extra 15-30
gallons on a bulk fuel purchase. He stated that the issue
is serious. He asked if there an increase would be passed
to the consuner with the eight cent tax. Ms. Bales
expl ained that distributors have stated that the mark up
i ncluded the tax. She expected that without the tax, but
with a particular percent markup by the retailer, the anmount
passed through to the consuner should be nore than eight
cents per gallon.

9:49:59 AM

Co- Chair Meyer asked how the eight cents would be passed on
to the consunmer. He understood that the intent of the
legislation with the nmotor fuel tax suspension was that the
benefit would be communicated to the consuner.

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN JR., ASSI STANT ATTORNEY CGENERAL, CIVIL
Dl VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAWtestified via tel econference. He
pointed out one idea, which required retailers to put a
sticker on the punp notifying consunmers about the eight cent
fuel tax suspension. He continued that a failure to post the
sticker would be a violation of the state’'s unfair trade
practice act, which would result in a $5,000 fine. Illinois
adopted this requirenent, and as referenced by the MT
study, 60% -80% of the savings was passed on. He thought
that the solution was to put pressure on the retail gasoline
station owners to pass the savings on, and if they don't
t hey coul d have potential class action |awsuits. He supposed
it could be difficult to verify that the savings is passed
on to the consuner, wthout a very expensive investigation

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 07/28/08 9:18 A M



and audit. He recommended spot checking the retailer’s
records, but noted potential problens. Another idea was to
provide positive nedia publishing of those retailers who
made a pl edge to pass on the savings, encouraging them from
a marketing standpoint.

9: 55: 07 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked i f t hese potentia
requi renents/incentives should be included in the bill
itself, or would it be done by regulation. M. Sniffen

pointed out that regulations always take tinme and that
i nclusion would be the best way. He noted that anendnents
have been drafted that incorporate the ideas.

Representati ve Hawker did not agree that a sticker on a punp
woul d work to control the price. Vice-Chair Stoltz expressed
belief that it would work.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that in the nore conpetitive markets,
i ke Anchorage, it could happen. However, he questioned the
effectiveness of the sticker in the rural areas. M. Ruaro
agr eed.

Co- Chair Meyer commented that the urban areas are where the
bulk of people in the state Iive. Vice-Chair Stoltze
poi nted out that there are vendors who will absolutely pass
the savings on because of their own social consciousness.
He thought that market forces will drive the costs.

9:59: 03 AM

Representative Kelly stated that the reduction of tax is one
of the easiest things that the state can offer. He did not
agree, however, wth requiring the display of a sticker
communi cating the tax suspension. He concurred that the
books will not be audited, due to cost and tine. He felt
that there are many retailers that are sensitive to the
i ncreased fuel costs.

Co-Chair Meyer was concerned with taxing when the funds are
not needed by the state. He wondered about the effect on
rural Al aska. He asked if the tax is currently paid when
the fuel was purchased. Ms. Bales clarified that the
retailer pays the tax when they make purchases from the
whol esaler. M. Bales pointed out that the | argest fuel use
in rural Alaska is for honme heating, which is exenpt from
tax. Rural communities have other issues with the high cost
of fuels. The tax suspension is focused on the |arge urban
conmuni ties.

10: 04: 45 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 07/28/08 9:18 A M



Co- Chair Meyer referenced the difficulty of auditing for the
sake of ensuring that the tax savings is passed on. Ms.
Bal es agreed that it would be difficult because when the
retailers purchase the fuel, they receive an invoice wth
the total cost of the fuel in addition to the tax add-on.
She continued that whatever mark up they used woul d i ndicate
whet her or not they passed the savings on. She argued that
the retailers could in fact have sone other costs associ at ed
with the mark up. The Tax Division would have to nake
assunptions as to why the savings was not passed on to the
consuner. She stated that at the retail level, the tax is
not an additional mark on; as it is with sales tax where the
consuner is always aware of the tax add on.

M. Ruaro commented on the benefits to rural Alaska in the
form of reduced marine fuel costs for fishernen as well as
airline services.

10: 07: 28 AM

Co- Chair Meyer asked about the mark up on notor fuel at the
retail level. M. Ruaro had “read sone articles indicating
that the margin is pretty slinf and that they work off a
vol unme basi s.

Co-Chair Chenault asked if there had been cal cul ations on
the actual savings to an individual consuner. Ms. Bales
responded that the savings would be around $100 dollars per
year for her personally.

Co- Chair Meyer thought it would help the trucking conpanies
who purchase a lot of fuel, by lowring the price for
shi ppi ng goods and servi ces statew de.

Vice-Chair Stoltze referenced the transportation costs and
t hought that the consuners had not yet absorbed those
i ncreased costs, due to long term governnent contracts. M.
Ruaro agreed, pointing out that there are a nunber of
i ndependent truckers that will see the benefits from tax
suspensi on right away.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked M. Ruaro, regarding the marine
fuel, if his interest was pronpted by the petition from
fishing groups. M. Ruaro stated he had been researching
the potential benefits to the fishing industry and charter
fi sherman before the petition.

Vice-Chair Stoltze requested a response to his fishing
petitions. He stated that the petitions were not seeking
noney, but instead sought fair treatnent.

10: 12: 24 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 07/28/08 9:18 A M



Co-Chair Chenault acknow edged that heating fuel in rura
Alaska was not taxed and asked if fuel for electric
generation was taxed. M. Bales said it was not taxed.

Representati ve Hawker stated concern that the state will be
sacrificing “good policy for bad politics”.

HB 4004 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:15 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 07/28/08 9:18 A M



